
Nevada State Board of Landscape Architecture 

Meeting Agenda 
February 7, 2015 page1 of 2 

 
AGENDA 

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE 
PUBLIC NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE*** 
 

MEETING AGENDA Pages 1-2 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER- Cary Baird 
a. Introductions of all Present, Establish Quorum and Approval of Agenda. (For Possible Action. Action by 

the Board on an item may be to approve, deny, amend, or pull or remove the item.) 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
No vote may be taken upon a matter raised under this item of the agenda until the matter itself has 
been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action may be taken. (NRS 241.020) 
 

3. STANDING BUSINESS 
a. Review and Approve Meeting Minutes of November 7, 2014-Cary Baird (For Possible Action. Action by 

the Board on an item may be to approve, deny, amend, or pull or remove the item.)Pages 3-8 

b. Review Board Web-Site Top Links; Create Updates as Needed-All Members (For Possible Action. 

Action by the Board on an item may be to approve, deny, amend, or pull or remove the item.)  
c. Update on 2015 Legislative Session-Ellis Antunez and Dale Doerr(For Possible Action. Action by the 

Board on an item may be to approve, deny, amend, or pull or remove the item.)Pages 9-17 

 
4. OLD BUSINESS 
a. Continue Discussion Regarding Plans to Promote Board Activities to Nevada State Schools and 
Universities-All Members (For Possible Action. Action by the Board on an item may be to approve, deny, amend, or 

pull or remove the item.) Page 14 
b. Determine Financial Compensation to Board Members and Temporary Employees of the Board-
Cary Baird (For Possible Action. Action by the Board on an item may be to approve, deny, amend, or pull or remove the 

item.)Page 18 
c. Continue Discussion on Implementing Continuing Education-All Members (For Possible Action. Action 

by the Board on an item may be to approve, deny, amend, or pull or remove the item.)Page 19 

 
5. NEW BUSINESS  
a. Review and Approve Initial and Renewal of Registration Application Revision-Helen Wright (For 

Possible Action. Action by the Board on an item may be to approve, deny, amend, or pull or remove the item.)pages 12-
27 
b. Discuss Solutions for Illegal Internet Advertising-Cary Baird (For Possible Action. Action by the Board on 

an item may be to approve, deny, amend, or pull or remove the item.) 

 

 

Brian Sandoval  
Governor 

 
BOARD MEMBERS 
Cary Baird-President 

Sandra Antunez 
Dale Doerr 

Ryan Hansen 
Stan Southwick 

 
FIELD INVESTIGATION 

OFFICERS 
Ellis Antunez 

Dan Hill 
Clair Lewis 

Kreg Mebust 
Donald Naquin 

Rich Shock 
Jack Zunino 

 
DEPUTY ATTORNEY 

GENERAL 
Henna Rasul 

 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

Helen Wright 
 

***PUBLIC NOTICE OF MEETING*** 
NEVADA STATE BOARD OF LANDSCAPE 

ARCHITECTURE 
 

Date:  Saturday February 7, 2015 
Time:  10:00 AM to 4:00 PM 
Location: Office of Stantec Consulting 
  7450 Arroyo Crossing Parkway, Suite 170 

Las Vegas, Nevada 89133 
 

 
 
  
 

  

Meeting Packet Page 1



Nevada State Board of Landscape Architecture 

Meeting Agenda 
February 7, 2015 page2 of 2 

c. Discuss Development of a Board One to Three-Year Strategic Plan-Cary Baird (For Possible Action. 

Action by the Board on an item may be to approve, deny, amend, or pull or remove the item.) 
 
6. COUNCIL OF LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE REGISTRATION BOARD REPORT 
a. No CLARB Items to be Reported. 
 
7. ENFORCEMENT  
a. No Enforcement Items to be Reported. 
 
8. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT-Helen Wright Pages 28-33 
a. Financial Update 
b. Operations Update 
c. Registration Renewal Update 
d. Presentation and Approval of Candidate for Registration in the State of Nevada (For Possible Action. 

Action by the Board on an item may be to approve, deny, amend, or pull or remove the item.) 
 
9. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
No vote may be taken upon a matter raised under this item of the agenda until the matter itself has 
been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action may be taken. (NRS 241.020) 

 
10. NEXT MEETING, NEXT MEETING AGENDA ITEMS AND ADJOURNMENT (For Possible Action. 

Action by the Board on an item may be to approve, deny, amend, or pull or remove the item.) 

    
Please Note: The Nevada State Board of Landscape Architecture may address agenda items out of sequence, combine the agenda items, pull or 
remove the agenda items, in order to aid the efficiency or effectiveness of the meeting or to accommodate persons appearing before the Board. The 
Board may continue agenda items to the next meeting as needed. (NRS 241.020) 
 
Public comment is welcomed by the Board and will be heard at the beginning of the Board meeting following the Call to Order and Roll and at the end of 
the agenda prior to the adjournment of the Board meeting. Public comment will be limited to five minutes per person. The Board meeting Chair may 
allow additional time to be given a speaker as time allows and at his/her sole discretion. Once all items on the agenda are completed the meeting will 
adjourn. 
 
Prior to the commencement and conclusion of a contested case or a quasi-judicial proceeding that may affect the due process rights of an individual, the 
Board may refuse to consider public comment. See NRS 233B.126. 
 
Anyone desiring additional information regarding the meeting is invited to call the Board office at 
(775) 688-1316.  We are pleased to make reasonable accommodations for members of the public who are disabled and wish to attend the meeting. If 
special arrangements for the meeting are necessary, please notify the Nevada State Board of Landscape Architecture, P.O. Box 17039, Reno, Nevada 
89511, or call (775) 688-1316, as soon as possible. 
 
The Board may convene in closed session to consider the character, alleged misconduct, professional competence or physical or mental health of a 
person. (NRS 241.030) 
 
All meeting materials are available for download at the Nevada State Board of Landscape Architecture meeting page of the website 
http://nsbla.state.nv.us/Agendas.htm.  Meeting materials may also be picked up in person at any one of the following office locations: 
 

 Office of the Attorney General – Carson City 
100 North Carson Street, Carson City, NV 89701 Telephone: 775-684-1100 Fax: 775-684-1108 
 

 Office of the Attorney General – Reno 
5420 Kietzke Lane Suite 202, Reno, NV 89511 Telephone: 775-688-1818 Fax: 775-688-1822 
 

 Office of the Attorney General – Las Vegas 
Grant Sawyer Building, 555 E. Washington Avenue Suite 3900, Las Vegas, NV 89101 Telephone: 702-486-3420 Fax: 702-486-3768. 

 

This notice has been posted at the office of the Nevada State Board of Landscape Architecture; the Board’s Web Page www.nsbla.state.us; Office of 
Hill, Clark and Associates Landscape Architects, Stantec Consulting, (Las Vegas and Reno), Lumos and Associates, and LA Studio, LLC. 
 

Meeting Packet Page 2

http://nsbla.state.nv.us/Agendas.htm


 
NEVADA STATE BOARD OF LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE  

BOARD MEETING  
  

November 7, 2014 
 
 
Voting Members in Attendance:   
Cary Baird, President of the Board 
Sandra Antunez 
Dan Hill 
Dale Doerr 
Ryan Hansen 
 
 
 
 
 

Non-Voting Attendees: 
Helen Wright 
Clair Lewis 
 
Members of the Public: 
Vivian Chicconi 
 
 
 
 

The agenda for this meeting was posted on November 3, 2014 prior to 9:00 AM in accordance with Nevada Revised Statute 241 in the following 
locations:   
 
The Office of Hill, Clark and Associates Landscape Architects 
Stantec Consulting, Las Vegas and Reno 
The Office of the Nevada State Board of Landscape Architecture 
The Office of LA Studio, LLC 
Lumos and Associates 
Nevada State Board of Landscape Architecture Web site 
 
 
 
Minutes Transcribed by Helen Wright, Executive Director of the Board 
 

Meeting Packet Page 3



 
Agenda Item Discussion Follow-Up 

1. Call to Order 

a. Introductions of all 
Present 
b. Establish Quorum 
c. Approval of Agenda 

The November 7, 2014 Nevada State Board of Landscape Architecture Board Meeting was called 
to order by the President of the Board, Cary Baird at 8:00 AM.  It is noted that the number of 
voting members present represented a quorum.  All attendees introduced themselves.  The 
agenda was approved as presented.  The meeting was recessed for two 5 minute breaks; there 
were no other interruptions during the meeting.  
 

Closed. 
 

2. Public Comment Period 

 There were no public comments. Closed. 
 

3. Standing Business 

a. Review and 
Approve Meeting 
Minutes of August 23, 
2014 
 
b. Create Quarterly 
Newsletter/Web-site 
Updates and Articles 
 
 

a. The minutes from the August 23, 2014 meeting of the Nevada State Board of Landscape 
Architecture were reviewed and approved by the Board.  The approved minutes will be posted on 
the Nevada State Board of Landscape Architecture web site.  
 
 
b. Attendees agreed to submit Newsletter/Web-site Updates and Articles on the following topics:  
Ryan Hansen will provide an article about the purpose of CLARB with regard to exams; included 
will be a link to the CLARB website. 
The Executive Director will write an article introducing the new board member and about 
reappointment of Ryan Hansen upon word from the Governor. 
This item is now a regular agenda item to be completed during upcoming Board Meetings.   
 

The described 
articles will be 
drafted and 
forwarded to the 
web-site. 

4. Old Business 
a. Discuss Possibility 
of On-line Payments 
to Board 
 

The Executive Director asked Deputy Attorney General Henna Rasul if the Board is allowed 
collect fees using electronic methods and was told that this was not an option.  This matter is now 
closed. 
 

Closed. 

  

Meeting Packet Page 4



Agenda Item Discussion Follow-Up 

4. Old Business (cont.) 

b. Update on Plans for 
2015 Legislative 
Session 
 
 

Plans for the 2015 Legislative Session were discussed.  Included will be:  
1. Daily assessment of introduced bills.  
2. Weekly contact with Executive Directors from the Architecture, Contractor’s and 
Engineer’s Board.  
3. Weekly e-mail status reports to Board Members (informational only).   
4. Identification and analysis for impact of key bills.   
5. Testify in favor or against identified bills as needed. 

All Board Members, Field Investigation Officers and selected former Board Members are asked to 
stand-by and respond if called.  Ellis Antunez will lead the process with the direction from the 
Board to utilize the services of Jim Smith as needed.   
 
Dale Doerr reported that he and Ellis Antunez met with Jim Smith who has agreed to assist the 
Board.  Mr. Smith recommended that Board Members attend meetings of the construction industry 
boards.  These tasks were assigned as follows: 
 

Engineering Board-Dale Doerr 
Contractors Board-Ryan Hansen 
Architecture Board-Dan Hill and Clair Lewis 
 

Progress reports will be provided at the next meeting of this Board.  Ellis Antunez will make 
contact with the Executive Directors from these Boards and Helen Wright will e-mail the individual 
Boards, inviting them to attend the Landscape Architecture Board Meetings. 
 

Report on all 
items including 
attendance at 
Construction 
Industry Board 
Meetings during 
the next meeting 
of the Board. 

5. New Business 

a. Discuss Plans to 
Promote Board 
Activities to UNLV and 
TMCC Landscape 
Architecture Students 
 

Members considered ideas to promote Board activities to Landscape Architecture students 
studying in Nevada.  UNLV has a Landscape Architecture program and College of Southern 
Nevada offers some of the classes required for the UNLV program.  Currently UNR and TMCC do 
not offer a program. Suggestions include creating a presentation for students and visiting the 
campus once or twice per year utilizing NASLA in facilitating the process.  Field Investigation 
Officers will be asked to participate with the presentations.  This discussion will be continued at 
the next meeting with a plan for this process to be implemented. 
    

Continue this 
discussion at the 
next meeting of 
the Board as an 
action item. 

  

Meeting Packet Page 5



Agenda Item Discussion Follow-Up 

5. New Business (cont.) 

b. Discuss Financial 
Compensation to 
Board Members and 
Field Investigation 
Officers 

Board Members reviewed NRS 623A.090-Compensation of members and employees. It was 
recognized that all Registered Landscape Architects must pay their registration renewal fees each 
year.  It was further noted that Board Members may be compensated for their service not to 
exceed $150 per day.  Compensation of Field Investigation Officers will be discussed as an action 
item at the next meeting of the Board, included will be a discussion regarding Risk Management 
Fees to the State of Nevada for Field Investigation Officers. 
 

Continue this 
discussion at the 
next meeting of 
the Board as an 
action item. 

c. Select Meeting 
Dates and Choose 
Offices for Calendar 
Year 2015 

Board Meeting Dates for Calendar Year 2015 will be as follows: 
February 7 Las Vegas 
May 16 Reno 
August 15 Reno 
November 14 Las Vegas 
 
Offices for Calendar Year 2015 will be as follows: 
President-Cary Baird 
Secretary-Ryan Hansen 
CLARB Representative-Sandra Antunez 
Enforcement Representative-Stan Southwick 
Member Approval Representative-Dale Doerr 
 
Field Investigation Officers as listed were reappointed for Calendar Year 2015, Dan Hill was 
added as a Field Investigation Officer. 
Ellis Antunez 
Clair Lewis 
Rich Shock 
Jack Zunino 
Kreg Mebust 
Donald Naquin 
 

Closed. 

  

Meeting Packet Page 6



Agenda Item Discussion Follow-Up 

5. New Business (cont.) 

d. Discuss 
Implementation of 
Continuing Education 

Board Member, Ryan Hansen led a discussion about implementation of required Continuing 
Education for Registered Landscape Architects in Nevada.  The values of this requirement 
included among other things, maintenance of professional competency.  Each Board Member was 
asked to investigate neighboring states asking how they handle continuing education including 
costs and report findings at the next meeting of the Board.  Assignments were as follows: 
Ryan Hansen-Washington and Oregon 
Dale Doerr-Texas and New Mexico 
Stan Southwick-Wyoming and Kansas 
Sandra Antunez-North Carolina and South Carolina 
 

Report findings at 
the next meeting 
of the Board. 

6. Council of Landscape Architecture Registration Board Report 
a. Update on CLARB 
Annual Meeting 
 

Members reviewed the filed report from Ryan Hansen on the CLARB Annual Meeting. Closed. 
 

7. Enforcement 

  There were no items for the Board. 
 Closed. 

8. Executive Director Report 
a. Financial Update 
b. Operations Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

a. Financial Update:  
The current bank account balance and accounting records are detailed in the financial reports 
included with this report.    The balance to date is $110,923.50 for all accounts.  In reviewing the 
Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual Report, it is apparent that the Board has received over 100.31% of 
its projected income, and has spent only 49.52% of its projected expenses.  All invoices to this 
date have been paid.   
b. Operations Update: 
Henna Rasul, Deputy Attorney General advised that an Index and List of Licensees and/or 
Certificate Holders must be sent to the Nevada State Library and Archives-this requirement has 
been completed. 
The Board received on 9-23-2014 Executive Order 2014-20 which establishes the requirement for 
a baseline report for aggregate veteran data in Nevada in 2015, (see attached).  This requirement 
will be fulfilled by adding appropriate questions to the registration application on January 1, 2015 
and the annual renewal application on May 1, 2015. The aggregate data will be sent to the 

. 

Meeting Packet Page 7



Agenda Item Discussion Follow-Up 

6. Executive Director Report (cont.) 

c. Registration 
Renewal Update 
d. Presentation and 
Approval of 
Candidates for 
Registration in the 
State of Nevada 
 

Nevada Department of Veterans Services after July 1, 2015. 
Requirements to fulfill SB-21 which asks for a listing of all Registered Landscape Architects who 
reside in Nevada.  The information will be used to assist the Nevada Controllers Office with debt 
collection is in process. 
The Balance Sheet as required by the Legislative Auditor has been prepared and delivered to the 
Chief of the Budget Division of the Department of Administration. 
Reports to State of Nevada LCB and AB 463 Use of Consultants have been filed. 
c. Registration Renewal Update:  
A total of 383 registration renewal applications and registration cards were mailed out on May 1, 
2014 as planned.  Additionally the registration renewal fee was raised to $200.   
As of this date the following have been processed: 
10 fees waived 
13 went inactive 
342 fees paid in full 
19 non-renewal-(1 check returned) all of these have received either an e-mail message or a 
registered letter advising of consequences for non-payment. 
1 registrant requested and is qualified for Emeritus Status. 
d. Candidates for Registration in the State of Nevada 
The following have submitted an application and are seeking approval for Registration. 
938 Kuhlken, James Registration by Reciprocity Complete 
939 Madsen, William Registration by Reciprocity Return Exam 
 

Candidates for 
Registration were 
approved as 
recommended. 

9. Public Comment Period 

 There was no additional public comment. 
 

Closed. 
 

10. Next Meeting and Adjournment 

 
The next meeting is scheduled for February 7, 2015 and will be held in Las Vegas.  There being 
no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 12:30 PM. 
 

Closed. 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted By: Helen Wright 
Executive Director for the Board, Nevada State Board of Landscape Architecture 
Approved By: Cary Baird, President of the Board, Nevada State Board of Landscape Architecture 
 

Meeting Packet Page 8



The following report concerns the 2015 Nevada Legislature or as it is known as the 78th session. 
Currently, there are four (4) bills being tracked.  The first bill, SB70 may affect this boards operation, as it 
concerns the Open Meeting law.  The three (3) other bills listed may affect the profession of Landscape 
Architecture.  I call your attention to AB 1.  Board members may want to contact their constituents and 
discuss these bills with them. 
 
As the first day of the 78th session is officially open on February 2, 2015, the tracking of bills and the 
dissemination of the information will depend on the timing.  As of this date, there are seven (7) Bill Draft 
Requests (BDR) that are being worked on that may affect the construction industry.  In general, these 
BDR’s cover topics of green building materials, defects and school facilities, will know more when the 
actual bills come out of the Legislative Council Bureau (LCB). 
 
Nothing from the Architect’s,  Engineer’s or Contractor’s  boards in the BDR’s or bills. 
 
SB 70 
Revises provisions governing meetings of public bodies. (BDR 19-155) 
Title: 
AN ACT relating to public bodies; making various changes relating to meetings of public bodies; and 
providing other matters properly relating thereto. 
Introduction Date:  Saturday, December 20, 2014 
Fiscal Notes:  Effect on Local Government: May have Fiscal Impact. 
Effect on the State: Yes. 
 

Digest: 
The Open Meeting Law only applies to meetings of a quorum of the members of certain public bodies. 
(NRS 241.016) “Quorum” is defined in existing law as “a simple majority of the constituent membership 
of a public body or another proportion established by law.” Section 2 of this bill deletes the extraneous 
word “constituent” from this definition, thereby clarifying that a quorum consists of a simple majority of 
the members of the public body unless a different number is prescribed in law. The Open Meeting Law 
specifies a certain number of working days by which a public body is mandated to comply with certain 
requirements with respect to its meetings, such as providing notice of its meetings and making available 
minutes or audio recordings of its meetings. (NRS 241.020, 241.033-241.035) Section 2 defines “working 
day” for purposes of these requirements as every day of the week except Saturday, Sunday and legal 
holidays prescribed in existing law. Therefore, if an agency has a 4-day workweek and is closed on 
Fridays, for example, Friday would nevertheless count as a working day for that agency for purposes of 
the requirements of the Open Meeting Law unless a particular Friday is a legal holiday. Under existing 
law, any provision of law which provides that a meeting, hearing or other proceeding is not subject to 
the Open Meeting Law or otherwise authorizes or requires a closed meeting, hearing or proceeding 
prevails over the general provisions of the Open Meeting Law. (NRS 241.016) Section 3 of this bill lists 
examples of other such provisions of law that prevail over the general provisions of the Open Meeting 
Law. The Open Meeting Law sets forth the minimum public notice required for meetings of public 
bodies subject to the Open Meeting Law. (NRS 241.020) Section 4 of this bill requires such a public body 
to certify in writing, on a form prescribed by the Attorney General, its compliance with the requirements 
for minimum public notice for each of its meetings. Under the Open Meeting Law, a member of a public 
body is prohibited from designating a person to attend a meeting of the public body in the place of the 
member unless the designation is expressly authorized by the legal authority pursuant to which the 
public body was created. (NRS 241.025) Section 5 of this bill extends this prohibition to the public body 
itself, thereby prohibiting a public body from designating a person to attend a meeting of the public 
body in the place of a member of the public body without specific legal authority. Under the Open 
Meeting Law, a public body is required to keep written minutes of each of its meetings. (NRS 241.035) 

Meeting Packet Page 9



Section 6 of this bill requires a public body to approve the minutes of a meeting of the public body at the 
next meeting of the public body, unless good cause for delay is shown. With certain exceptions, the 
Attorney General is required under existing law to investigate and prosecute violations of the Open 
Meeting Law. (NRS 241.039) Section 7 of this bill authorizes the filing of a complaint alleging a violation 
of the Open Meeting Law with the Office of the Attorney General. Section 7 also makes such a complaint 
a public record but makes any other record, document or information obtained by the Attorney General 
during an investigation of a violation of the Open Meeting Law confidential until the investigation is 
closed. 
 Primary Sponsor(s): 
Senate Committee on Government Affairs 
 

SB 66 
Revises provisions governing local governmental agreements for the development of land. (BDR 22-422) 
Title: 
AN ACT relating to local government planning; revising provisions relating to agreements for the 
development of land entered into between the governing body of a local government and one or more 
persons having a legal or equitable interest in the land; providing for the extension of the period within 
which construction must commence pursuant to such an agreement; establishing a procedure for the 
amendment or cancellation of such an agreement by the governing body; revising provisions governing 
the contents and scope of such an agreement; and providing other matters properly relating thereto. 
Introduction Date:  Saturday, December 20, 2014 
Fiscal Notes: Effect on Local Government: No. 
Effect on the State: No. 
 

Digest: 
Existing law authorizes the governing body of a local government to enter into an agreement for the 
development of land with one or more persons who hold a legal or equitable interest in the land. (NRS 
278.0201-278.0207) Section 2 of this bill defines the term “undeveloped land” and section 6 of this bill 
revises the definition of the terms “infrastructure” and “public facilities” for the purpose of such 
agreements. Section 8 of this bill revises the scope and contents of an agreement for the development 
of land. Existing law provides that an agreement for the development of land may establish a deadline 
by which construction must commence and may provide for an extension of that deadline. The 
extended deadline is itself subject to an extension by the governing body under certain circumstances. 
(NRS 278.0201) Sections 3 and 8 of this bill reorganize the provisions for the extension of such a 
deadline. Existing law provides for the amendment or cancellation of an agreement for the development 
of land by mutual consent of the parties to the agreement or their successors in interest. Existing law 
also authorizes the governing body to amend or cancel the agreement without the consent of the other 
parties to the agreement under certain circumstances. (NRS 278.0205) Sections 4 and 9 of this bill 
require a governing body that proposes unilaterally to amend or cancel an agreement to hold a public 
hearing before taking such action. Section 4 provides that any person having a legal or equitable interest 
in the land subject to the agreement or any other interested person may present oral or written 
testimony at the hearing. Section 4 requires the governing body to consider all the testimony presented 
at the hearing and, in the resolution or ordinance in which the governing body makes its determination 
concerning the proposed amendment to or cancellation of the agreement, pass upon the merits of each 
complaint, protest or objection set forth in the testimony. Section 4 also provides for judicial review of 
the decision of the governing body concerning the unilateral amendment to or cancellation of the 
agreement. Sections 5, 7 and 10-17 of this bill make conforming changes. 
Primary Sponsor(s): 
Senate Committee on Government Affairs 

Meeting Packet Page 10



AB 1  Italics and color are mine 
Revises provisions relating to constructional defects. (BDR 3-584) 
Title: 
AN ACT relating to constructional defects; enacting provisions governing the indemnification of a 
controlling party by a subcontractor for certain claims for constructional defects; enacting provisions 
governing wrap-up insurance policies or consolidated insurance programs covering certain claims for 
constructional defects; and providing other matters properly relating thereto. 
Introduction Date: 
Thursday, December 18, 2014 
Fiscal Notes: 
Effect on Local Government: No. 
Effect on the State: No. 
Digest: 
Under existing law, before an owner of a residence or appurtenance or certain other persons may 
commence a civil action against a contractor, subcontractor, supplier or design professional for certain 
defects in the residence or appurtenance, the claimant must provide notice of the defect to the 
contractor. (NRS 40.645) Under existing law, not later than 30 days after the date on which the 
contractor receives the notice, the contractor must forward a copy of the notice to each subcontractor, 
supplier or design professional whom the contractor reasonably believes is responsible for a defect 
specified in the notice. (NRS 40.646) The subcontractor, supplier or design professional who receives the 
notice must inspect the alleged constructional defect and may elect to repair the defect. (NRS 40.646, 
40.647) Section 1 of this bill establishes the circumstances under which a provision in a residential 
construction contract requiring a subcontractor to indemnify, defend or otherwise hold harmless a 
controlling party for the negligence or intentional acts or omissions of the controlling party is void and 
unenforceable. Under section 1, if such a provision is not void and unenforceable, the subcontractor's 
duty to defend the controlling party must arise upon the presentment to the subcontractor of a notice 
containing a claim, action or cause of action from which it can be reasonably inferred that an alleged 
constructional defect was caused by or attributable to the subcontractor's work, negligence, or wrongful 
act or omission. Section 1 also enacts provisions governing: (1) the manner in which a controlling party 
may pursue indemnification from a subcontractor when the controlling party is named as an additional 
insured in the commercial general liability insurance policy of the subcontractor; and (2) wrap-up 
insurance policies or consolidated insurance programs that cover two or more contractors or 
subcontractors who perform work on residential construction for risks associated with the construction. 
Under sections 1 and 4 of this bill, the provisions of this bill apply only to residential construction for 
which a contract is entered into on or after October 1, 2015. 
 
Primary Sponsor(s): 
Assemblywoman Marilyn Kirkpatrick 
Assemblyman Ira Hansen 
Senator Ben Kieckhefer 
  

Meeting Packet Page 11



 AB 25 
Revises provisions governing the residential construction tax. (BDR 22-454) 
Title: 
AN ACT relating to the residential construction tax; revising provisions governing the authorized uses of 
the tax; and providing other matters properly relating thereto. 
Introduction Date:  Saturday, December 20, 2014 
Fiscal Notes:  Effect on Local Government: No. 
Effect on the State: No. 
Digest: 
Existing law authorizes the city council of any city or the board of county commissioners of any county 
which has adopted a master plan and recreation plan which includes, as a part of the plan, future or 
present sites for neighborhood parks to impose, by ordinance, a residential construction tax. Money 
collected through the tax may only be used for the acquisition, improvement and expansion of 
neighborhood parks or the installation of facilities in existing or neighborhood parks. (NRS 278.4983) 
This bill additionally authorizes the use of money collected through the tax for the improvement of park 
facilities and specifies that improvement includes replacement, modification, redesign, redevelopment 
or enhancement, but does not include routine or preventative maintenance.  
 
Primary Sponsor(s): 
Committee on Government Affairs 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Ellis L. Antuñez, FASLA 
Board Enforcement Investigative Officer 
NV #133 
 
January 31, 2015 
 
 

Meeting Packet Page 12



Also, the contact for the Engineer’s Board is Noni Johnson, Director – 688-1231. 
  
  
  
From: Dale Doerr [mailto:ddoerr@lumosengineering.com]  
Sent: Thursday, November 13, 2014 9:32 AM 
To: 'Landscape Board' 
Subject: Engineer's Board meeting 
  
Helen, 
  
I just met with the Engineers and Surveyor’s Board and thought it went very well. They are a friendly 
group – I know 3 of the 9 members very well, so that is good. I mentioned our goal this next year of CE 
requirements, and she noted the engineers have been though the same process, now outlined in NRS 
625. I do have a copy of that booklet to summarize and bring to our February meeting, along with the 
Texas and New Mexico requirements. Enjoy your time off! 
  
Dale 
  

 

  
Dale Doerr, RLA 
Manager, Landscape Architecture 
9222 Prototype Drive 
Reno, NV 89521 
Tel: 775.827.6111 
Fax: 775.827.6122 
ddoerr@lumosengineering.com 

Noni, 
  
Thank you and your Board for the opportunity to speak as a guest this morning regarding the State 
Board or Landscape Architecture. Your chairman made me feel very welcomed. As I mentioned Helen 
Wright is our Executive Director and will be your contact for coordination between our Boards. Helen is 
at 775-530-4602 or landscapeboard@nsbla.nv.gov  My contact information is below – we hope to work 
together during the upcoming Legislative session and beyond on goals that are common to both of our 
Boards. 
  
Dale 
 

Meeting Packet Page 13

https://mail.state.nv.us/owa/redir.aspx?C=0a207822450843e6a9631260ae291428&URL=mailto%3addoerr%40lumosengineering.com
https://mail.state.nv.us/owa/redir.aspx?C=0a207822450843e6a9631260ae291428&URL=mailto%3addoerr%40lumosengineering.com
https://mail.state.nv.us/owa/redir.aspx?C=0a207822450843e6a9631260ae291428&URL=mailto%3alandscapeboard%40nsbla.nv.gov
https://mail.state.nv.us/owa/redir.aspx?C=0a207822450843e6a9631260ae291428&URL=http://www.lumosengineering.com/


EDUCATION 
The American Society of Landscape Architects, Nevada Chapter, stays active in the Nevada schools of 
higher education and supports UNLV and TMCC in their landscape architecture programs. Chapter 
member’s support the student’s learning by participating in classes and juries and sharing their 
experiences as landscape architects to further the student’s education. Joint events help create a link 
between seasoned professionals and emerging professionals. 
 
The following degree program is offered in the State of Nevada: 
 
University of Nevada Las Vegas 
BLA Program 
 
Daniel H. Ortega, MLA 
Associate Professor and Program Coordinator 
Landscape Architecture and Planning Program 
UNLV School of Architecture 
4505 S. Maryland Parkway 
Las Vegas, Nevada   89154-4018 
Email: dhortega@unlv.nevada.edu 
Ph: 702.895.3031 

JOBS 
The Chapter also supports career advancement of fellow landscape architects, emerging professionals, 
and students by providing links to local job opportunities.  
 
For information on posting a Nevada job opportunity, please contact info@nvasla.com  
 

Meeting Packet Page 14

http://www.unlv.edu/degree/blarch
mailto:dhortega@unlv.nevada.edu
mailto:info@nvasla.com


Risk Management Coverage for Field Investigation Officers 

Summary of Expenses 

• $30.01 per employee FY15 
• Fee may increase for FY16 
• May be added now 

See messages from State of Nevada Risk Management: 

Good morning - 
 
As we have already billed for FY15, you can add the position to the FY16 billing.  I am unsure yet what the rate will be for 
FY16, but for FY15 it was $120.38 for a full time position.  You may want to claim that position at only .25 which equals 
$30.01 per person per year.   I hope this helps. 

Tawnya Cook 
Office of the Attorney General 
Program Officer I - Tort Claims Unit 
100 N. Carson Street 
Carson City, NV  89701-4717 
775-684-1263 - Phone 
775-684-1108 - Fax 
tcook@ag.nv.gov 

 

Good morning: 
 
Please contact Stacie Hancock in my office if you board wishes to obtain workers' compensation coverage for CY 2015.   

I am writing to let you know the new 2014 rate for workers’ compensation coverage is $2.88 per $100 of wages.  Please 
contact Stacie Hancock in our office if you wish to request WC coverage for the Landscape Architecture Board. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Ana M. Andrews, ARM | Administrator 
Nevada Department of Administration | Risk Management Division 
T: (775)687-3192 | F: (775)687-3195 | E: amandrews@admin.nv.gov 
www.risk.nv.gov  
 
 
 

Meeting Packet Page 15

https://mail.state.nv.us/owa/redir.aspx?C=bdaea53749244dcd84415562359548bd&URL=http%3a%2f%2fwww.risk.nv.gov


CHAIR:  
Stephen Ray, RLA 

 
VICE CHAIR:  

Michael O’Brien, RLA 
 

TREASURER: 
Kathleen Olsen 

 
Gregg Everhart,  RLA 

 
Sydney Hatch 

 
Lauri L’Amoreaux, RLA 

 
Susan Smith 

C O N T I N U I N G  E D U C A T I O N  P R O G R A M  R E V I E W  

 The Oregon State Land-
scape Architect Board’s 
(OSLAB) continuing educa-
tion program is now over 10 
years old!  In recognition of 
that important milestone, 
the Board is considering un-
dertaking a comprehensive 
review of the program in 
2015 to evaluate what is 
working well and where   
adjustments might be pru-
dent.  The Board will want to 
hear from registrants about 
their experiences with the 
continuing education stand-
ards and audit process.  Stay 
tuned for future invitations 
to engage with the Board on 
these topics.   
 
 An important part of pro-
gram evaluation is to under-
stand program history.  Here 
are a few highlights regard-
ing the evolution of the con-
tinuing education program.  
The first notifications about 
continuing education re-
quirements were delivered to 
registrants with renewal 
statements issued in 2004.  
New rules setting the Profes-
sional Development Hours 
(PDH) required (24 per bien-
nium, now 12 per renewal 
year), defining PDH stand-
ards and establishing an 
audit process took effect on 
July 1, 2006.  The rules were 
revised in 2007 to require 

registrants to certify com-
pletion of continuing educa-
tion to the Board via signa-
ture on annual renewal 
forms.  In 2008, the contin-
uing education requirement 
was reduced to 4 PDH per 
year for registrants with 
over 25 years of registra-
tion and at least 10 years 
as an OSLAB registrant.  
That same year the Board 
adopted continuing educa-
tion standards for activa-
tion of inactive and delin-
quent registrations. 

 

 The audit process that 
exists today was fine-tuned 
over the first several years 
of implementation (2007-
2009).  In 2010, the Board 
adopted new rules clarify-
ing acceptable forms of 
documentation and memo-
rializing audit procedures.  
The Board continues to 
largely follow the same pro-

cess:  (1) random selection of 
registrants for audit, (2) audit 
target of 5% of registrants per 
year, (3) requirement for PDH 
log and supporting documenta-
tion to be submitted by regis-
trants selected for audit, and 
(4) enforcement of standards 
for validation of PDH.   
 
 Over the years, OSLAB has 
done a lot of outreach to regis-
trants about the continuing ed-
ucation requirements.  Continu-
ing education has been the top-
ic of numerous newsletter arti-
cles, as evidenced by a review 
of 2005 to 2014 newsletters 
available via the Board website.  
The Board has also conducted 
various trainings over the years 
in cooperation with the Oregon 
Chapter of the American Socie-
ty of Landscape Architects.  
And OSLAB has worked with 
many registrants through the 
audit process.   
 
 No matter how much out-
reach the Board does on contin-
uing education, there always is 
a demand for more.  Part of the 
reason for this is the continual 
addition of new registrants.  
But the Board may also look at 
whether different outreach ef-
forts might be warranted in the 
future to aid registrants in un-
derstanding requirements and 
where they can find information 
about this Board program.   

O
R

E
G

O
N

 S
T

A
T

E
 

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T
 

B
O

A
R

D
 

I N S I D E  T H I S  
I S S U E :  

B O A R D  W E L C O M E S  
P U B L I C  M E M B E R   2  

C O M P L I A N C E   
U P D A T E  2  

2 0 1 5  M E E T I N G   
C A L E N D A R  2  

R E G I S T R A T I O N  
U P A T E  3  

C O N T .  E D U C A T I O N  
U P D A T E  3  

C O N T .  E D U C A T I O N  
S T A N D A R D S  4  

C O N T .  E D U C A T I O N  
S T A N D A R D S  ( C O N T . )  5  

U P C O M I N G  E V E N T S  6  

A U D I T  S U C C E S S  6  

O S L A B  N E W S  &  R E V I E W  

B O A R D   
M E M B E R S :  

WINTER 2015 

Meeting Packet Page 16

http://www.oregon.gov/landarch/Pages/minutes.aspx�


 
 
 

All returned exams must be delivered to the Board office at least 2 weeks prior to the meeting in order to be approved. 
Section 1 Identifying information 

Last Name  First Name Date of Birth 
 
 

Place of Birth 
 
 

Social Security Number Citizenship or Legal Residence 
 

Residence Address                         
 
 
 
City 
 
 

State Zip code Home Telephone 

Business Name                            
 
 
                 
Business Address 
 
 
 
City 
 
 

State Zip code Business Telephone 

Facsimile Number Electronic Mail Address(s) 
 
 

 
Have you ever served in the military?                                                                                                 Yes   No 
 
If yes, Which Branch(es) of Service? (Circle all that apply) Army/Army Reserve; Marine Corps/Marine Corps Reserve; 
Navy/Navy Reserve; Air Force/Air Force Reserve; Coast Guard/Coast Guard Reserve; National Guard. 
 
What was your Military Occupation or Specialty? ____________________________________________________ 
 
What were your Date(s) of Service: _______________________________________________________________ 
 

If the answer to any of the following questions is “yes” attach a detailed explanatory statement. 
 
1. Have you ever been convicted of a misdemeanor or gross misdemeanor?    Yes   No 

2. Have you ever been convicted of a felony?        Yes   No 

  

 

 
Nevada State Board of  

Landscape Architecture 
Application for  

Registration by Reciprocity 
Please Type or Print Legibly in Black Ink  

Completing All Sections 
 

Nonrefundable Application Fee $100.00 
 
 

Meeting Packet Page 17



Section 2 Landscape Architect Registration 
 
List all states or provinces of Canada, which have issued you a certificate of registration, use 
additional sheets if needed. 
 

o Submit verification from your home state of registration or province of Canada that you 
are/were active and registered in good standing, with no disciplinary action ever taken 
and that you received a minimum passing score of 75 percent on each section of the 
national examination.   

 
o Submit verification from each additional state or province of Canada that you are/were 

active and registered in good standing, with no disciplinary action ever taken. 
 
1. Name of State or Province of Canada 
 

Date of Registration 
 
 

Address of Board issuing Certificate of Registration 
 
 

City, Zip code 

E-mail address of Board Issuing Certificate of Registration Registration Number 
 
 

2. Name of State or Province of Canada 
 

Date of Registration 
 
 

Address of Board issuing Certificate of Registration 
 
 

City, Zip code 

E-mail address of Board Issuing Certificate of Registration Registration Number 
 
 

3. Name of State or Province of Canada 
 

Date of Registration 
 
 

Address of Board issuing Certificate of Registration 
 
 

City, Zip code 

E-mail address of Board Issuing Certificate of Registration Registration Number 
 
 

 
Professional Organizations 
Please provide a list of professional organizations of which you are a member. 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
  

Meeting Packet Page 18



Section 3 Active Engagement in Full-time Practice 
 

Provide verification of 2 or more years of active engagement in full-time practice as a Registered 
Landscape Architect.  Use as many forms as needed to provide verification for 2 years.  Council of 
Landscape Architect Registration Board Certificate holders may omit this section. 
 (put link here) 
 
Name of Employer 
 

Dates of Employment 
 
 

Address                                                            City State Zip code 
 
 

Title of Position Held 
 

Duties Performed  
 
 

Describe in Particular Duties Performed in the field of Landscape Architecture 
 
 
Name of Employer 
 

Dates of Employment 
 
 

Address                                                            City State Zip code 
 
 

Title of Position Held 
 

Duties Performed  
 
 

Describe in Particular Duties Performed in the field of Landscape Architecture 
 
 
Name of Employer 
 

Dates of Employment 
 
 

Address                                                            City State Zip code 
 
 

Title of Position Held 
 

Duties Performed  
 
 

Describe in Particular Duties Performed in the field of Landscape Architecture 
 
 
  

Meeting Packet Page 19



Section 4 Professional References 
 
Submit 4 professional references, 2 from registered landscape architects and 2 from other 
licensed professionals in a related design profession who have direct knowledge of your 
professional abilities.  All references must be stamped by the person providing the reference. 
(put link here) 
 
1. Name of Landscape Architect 
 

Nature of Relationship 
 
 

Address                                                            City State Zip code 
 
 

2. Name of Landscape Architect 
 

Nature of Relationship 
 
 

Address                                                            City State Zip code 
 
 

3. Name of Professional Reference 
 

Nature of Relationship 
 
 

Address                                                            City State Zip code 
 
 

2. Name of Professional Reference 
 

Nature of Relationship 
 
 

Address                                                            City State Zip code 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Meeting Packet Page 20



Section 5 Education 
 
State in chronological order the name and address of each institution attended, the dates spent 
at each, major, indicate the degree received if applicable and the year of graduation.  Use 
additional sheets if needed.  Council of Landscape Architect Registration Board Certificate 
holders may omit this section. 
 
1. Name of Institution 
 

Graduation Date 
 
 

Address                                                            City State Zip code 
 
 

Degree Received 
 

Major Dates Attended 
 
 

2. Name of Institution 
 

Graduation Date 
 
 

Address                                                            City State Zip code 
 
 

Degree Received 
 

Major Dates Attended 
 
 

3. Name of Institution 
 

Graduation Date 
 
 

Address                                                            City State Zip code 
 
 

Degree Received 
 

Major Dates Attended 
 
 

4. Name of Institution 
 

Graduation Date 
 
 

Address                                                            City State Zip code 
 
 

Degree Received 
 

Major Dates Attended 
 
 

 

Meeting Packet Page 21



AFFIDAVIT 
 
I certify the information contained in this application to be truthful, complete and accurate. 
 
I acknowledge that the Nevada State Board of Landscape Architecture will compile and evaluate a record containing all 
aspects of my education, experience, moral character and reputation.  I agree to provide any additional information as 
requested by the Board.  I hereby authorize any individual, company or institution with whom I have been associated to 
furnish to the Nevada State Board of Landscape Architecture any information concerning my qualifications for 
professional registration in Nevada which they have on record or otherwise, and do hereby release the individual, 
company or institution and all individuals therewith from all liability for any damage whatsoever incurred by me as a result 
of their furnishing such information. 
 
I attest that if I am subject to a court order for child support of one or more children that I am not out of compliance with 
the order or with a plan approved by the District Attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for repayment in the 
amount owed pursuant to the order. 
 
I acknowledge that any statements, papers or documents received by the Board in its investigation may be transmitted by 
the Board to the Council of Landscape Architectural Registration Boards or other political subdivisions registering 
landscape architects as requested. 
 
I attest that I am a citizen of the United States or that I am lawfully entitled to remain and work in the United States. 
 
             
Signature of Applicant  _______________________________________________ Date ___________________ 
 
 
State of   ____________________ County of  _____________________________________ 
     
Being first duly sworn, deposes and says: I am the applicant named in this application, have read and understand the 
contents thereof, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, the foregoing statements are true and correct in every 
respect. 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this  _________ day of   ____________________,    20______   
 
        
Signature of Notary Public  ___________________________ my commission expires  ______________ 
 
 
NOTARY SEAL  
 
 
 
 

 
Please securely attach a 
recognizable photo (2”x 21/2”). 
Photo must be taken within 
one year of submission of this 
application.  Affix your signature 
and date of the photo over the lower 
right-hand corner of the photo. 

Meeting Packet Page 22



 
 
 
May 1, 2015 
 
«First_Name» «Last_Name» 
«Mailing_Address» 
«Mailing_City», «Mailing_State» «Mailing_Zipcode» 
 
Dear «Title» «Last_Name»: 
 
As you are aware, your Nevada State Board of Landscape Architecture Registration expires each year on June 30th.   
On the back side of this message is your Application for Renewal of Registration and your 2015-2016 Registration 
Card.  Please read the application over carefully, taking note to correct any inaccurate or missing (if you see “need” 
in the field, it is missing) pre-printed fields using red ink, so that our database can be updated with your most current 
information.  Please answer all questions, including an explanation for any “no” answers (except # 5) with your 
application.  Then sign and date the application.  Remove your registration card; make a copy of both pages for your 
records. Please note the Board no longer issues wall mountable certificates with Registration Renewals, however if 
you wish to have one please send an additional $25 with your registration making note of your request.  

Please include all applicable fees with your registration renewal application INCLUDING CHANGE OF ADDRESS 
FEE if this applies to you.  Renewals received which are postmarked after June 30, 2015 are subject to a $50 
delinquency fee and will be returned for full payment.  If you were granted initial registration and paid your 
registration fees after July 2014, you are entitled to pay a reduced Annual Renewal Fee.  Please contact the Board to 
determine the amount due if this situation applies to you.  An updated roster will be posted on the Nevada State 
Board of Landscape Architecture’s website on July 1, 2015 which will include only names of those who have paid 
their fees.  Names will not be included on the official web-site roster until applications are returned and fees are paid.   

The Board holds quarterly meetings and encourages input from all registrants.  Please check the web site for exact 
dates, times and locations.  Agendas and meeting minutes are also posted on the web site www.nsbla.state.nv.us  
for your review.  Your Nevada State Board of Landscape Architecture is in place to serve you, the Registered 
Landscape Architect.  Please direct all questions and concerns to our e-mail address 
at LandscapeBoard@nsbla.nv.gov where they will be forwarded to the appropriate Board Member for response.   

Again, we thank you for your support. 

Sincerely, 

 
Helen Wright, Executive Director 
 
Fees authorized by NRS 623 A.240 for 2014-2015 Registration are as follows: 

 
Annual Renewal Fee $200 
Delinquency Fee $50 
Change of Address Fee $10 
Reinstatement Fee $300 
Certificate Fee $25 

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE  
P.O. BOX 17039 * RENO, NV 89511 

APPLICATION FOR RENEWAL OF REGISTRATION 
For registration period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 

 
Renewal Fee is $200. 

 

Meeting Packet Page 23

mailto:LandscapeBoard@nsbla.nv.gov


***MAKE A COPY OF THIS PAGE FOR YOUR RECORDS*** 
RETURN THIS PAGE TO:  

NSBLA, PO BOX 17039, RENO, NV 89511 
***WITH YOUR PAYMENT OF $200*** 

Include a $10 additional payment if your home or office address is changed. 
 

NSBLA Registration Number: «Certificate_Number» 
Name: «First_Name» «Last_Name» 
Home Address: «home_address», «home_city», «Home_State» «Home_Zipcode» 
Home Phone: «Home_telephone» 
Business Name: «employer» 
Business Address: «employer_address», «Employer_city», «employer_state» «employer_zipcode» 
Business Phone: «employer__phone_number»  
E-mail address: «email_address» 
Fax number: «employer_fax_number» 
 
Do you wish to renew your registration with the Nevada State Board of Landscape Architecture?  Yes  No 
 
• If you answered “No” do not complete this form.  Sign and return to Nevada State Board of Landscape Architecture to discontinue 

your registration.  You will not be allowed to practice Landscape Architecture in the State of Nevada, nor can you use the title 
“Landscape Architect”, “Landscape Designer” or any other title or term indication or implying that you are a Landscape Architect in 
any sign, card listing, advertisement or in any other manner.  Violation of this statute will be subject to disciplinary action by the 
Nevada State Board of Landscape Architecture in conjunction with the Office of the State of Nevada Attorney General. 

 
• If you answered “Yes”, please complete this form, correcting any inaccurate pre-printed information and returning it to the Nevada 

State Board of Landscape Architecture with all required fees prior to June 30, 2014.  Renewals received which are postmarked 
after June 30, 2015 are subject to a $50. delinquency fee and will be returned for full payment. 
 

 
Please answer each of the following questions: Since your last renewal of registration  
 

1. Have you been subject to any disciplinary or pending legal action that could affect your professional status in this or any other 
state?   Yes      No 

2. Have you been denied registration in any other state or jurisdiction?   Yes      No 
3. Have you had your registration in another state or jurisdiction suspended or revoked?   Yes      No 
4. Have you surrendered or allowed your registration to lapse in any jurisdiction due to an action pending or threatened?   Yes      No 
5. Are you subject to a court order for child support?  If you answer yes, please respond to the next question.   Yes      No 

6. 
If you are subject to a court order for support of one or more children are you out of compliance with the order or with a plan 
approved by the District Attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for repayment in the amount owed pursuant to the 
order? 

  Yes      No 

7. Are there any other matters, which have occurred since your last registration, which would prevent the Board from approving 
your request for renewal of registration to the Nevada State Board of Landscape Architecture?   Yes      No 

8. Have you ever served in the military?   Yes      No 

9. 
If yes, Which Branch(es) of Service? (Circle all that apply) Army/Army Reserve; Marine Corps/Marine Corps Reserve; Navy/Navy Reserve; 
Air Force/Air Force Reserve; Coast Guard/Coast Guard Reserve; National Guard 

10. 
What was your Military Occupation Specialty/Specialties? _________________________________________________________ 

11. 
What were your Date(s) of Service: _________________________________________________________ 

“Yes” answers for all questions, (except #5 and #8), require a written explanation on a separate sheet. 
 
In applying for renewal of registration to the Nevada State Board of Landscape Architecture I agree that I will at all times abide by NRS 623.A and NAC 623.A which regulate 
the practice of Landscape Architecture in the State of Nevada.  All information submitted by me in this application is true to the best of my knowledge and belief.  In 
consideration of the Board, I release from any and all liability all representatives of the Board and Board Staff for any and all of their acts or statements at any time performed 
or communicated in good faith and without malice in connection with evaluating this application for renewal and my qualifications.  I further agree to report any changes that 
would impact my ability to practice my profession in the State of Nevada. 
____________________________________________  
Signature                                               
 
____________________________________________  
Date 

 
Please Note: Your registration card is void until fees are paid. 

Meeting Packet Page 24



NEVADA STATE BOARD OF LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 

February 7, 2015 
a. Financial Update:  
The current bank account balance and accounting records are detailed in the financial reports 
included with this report.    The balance to date is $102,466.23 for all accounts.  In reviewing the 
Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual Report, it is apparent that the Board has received over 100% 
(103.53%) of its projected income, and has spent only 65.48% of its projected expenses.  All 
invoices to this date have been paid.   
 
b. Operations Update: 
 
Reports to State of Nevada: 
 

• Executive Order 2014-20 established the requirement for a baseline report for aggregate 
veteran data in Nevada in 2015.  This requirement was fulfilled by adding appropriate 
questions to the registration application and the annual renewal application to be used 
May 1, 2015. The aggregate data will be sent to the Nevada Department of Veterans 
Services after July 1, 2015.  The revised forms were scheduled to be approved at this 
meeting 

 
• Requirements to fulfill SB-21 which asks for a listing of all Registered Landscape 

Architects who reside in Nevada.  The information will be used to assist the Nevada 
Controllers Office with debt collection is in process to be reported again at the end of 
February. 
 

• The Balance Sheet as required by the Legislative Auditor was prepared and delivered to 
the Chief of the Budget Division of the Department of Administration on November 30, 
2014. 
 

• Reports to State of Nevada LCB and AB 463 Use of Consultants have been filed. 
 
c. Registration Renewal Update (FY15):  
 
As of this date the following have been processed: 

• 10 fees waived 
• 13 went inactive 
• 351 fees paid in full 
• 19 non-renewal-(1 check returned) all of these have received either an e-mail message 

or a registered letter advising of consequences for non-payment. 
• 1 registrant requested and is qualified for Emeritus Status. 
• 3 candidates for registration are in process, completing Nevada Specific Research Exam 
• 1 notification of CLARB Record wishing to submit an application-no application yet 
• 1 notification of LARE completed-no application yet 

 
d. Candidate for Registration in the State of Nevada 
The following has submitted an application and is seeking approval for Registration. 
Registration Number 940 Brian Lind Registration by Reciprocity  
(Pending Registration Fee $250.) 
 

Meeting Packet Page 25



Feb 1, 15

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

CD 5219 - B of A 33,126.05

Checking 4998 - B of A 31,970.85

Petty Cash 258.46

Savings 8524 - B of A 37,110.87

Total Checking/Savings 102,466.23

Total Current Assets 102,466.23

TOTAL ASSETS 102,466.23

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Other Current Liabilities

Payroll Liabilities 563.25

Total Other Current Liabilities 563.25

Total Current Liabilities 563.25

Total Liabilities 563.25

Equity

Opening Bal Equity 32,224.00

Retained Earnings 39,830.60

Net Income 29,848.38

Total Equity 101,902.98

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 102,466.23

Meeting Packet Page 26



 12:05 PM

 02/01/15

 Cash Basis

 Nevada State Board of Landscape Architecture

 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 July 2014 through June 2015

Jul '14 - Jun 15 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Income

001 · Application Fees

002 · LAIT ($100) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

003 · LARE ($175) 350.00 350.00 0.00 100.0%

004 · Reciprocity ($100) 600.00 1,000.00 -400.00 60.0%

Total 001 · Application Fees 950.00 1,350.00 -400.00 70.37%

010 · Exam Fees

015 · Nevada Specific Exam ($75) 600.00 900.00 -300.00 66.67%

Total 010 · Exam Fees 600.00 900.00 -300.00 66.67%

020 · Interest Income 3.74 50.00 -46.26 7.48%

030 · New Registration Fees

031 · New Certificate Fee ($25) 200.00 300.00 -100.00 66.67%

032 · New Licensee Fee - LARE ($150) 400.00 400.00 0.00 100.0%

033 · New Licensee Fee - Recipr ($150 1,200.00 500.00 700.00 240.0%

034 · New Stamp Fee ($25) 200.00 300.00 -100.00 66.67%

Total 030 · New Registration Fees 2,000.00 1,500.00 500.00 133.33%

040 · Registration Renewal Fees

045 · Duplicate Renewal License ($25) 125.00 50.00 75.00 250.0%

041 · Reinstatement Fee ($300) 600.00 600.00 0.00 100.0%

042 · Renewal Delinquency Fee ($50) 850.00 500.00 350.00 170.0%

043 · Renewal Fee LA ($200) 68,400.00 66,235.02 2,164.98 103.27%

044 · Renewal Fee LAIT ($100) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total 040 · Registration Renewal Fees 69,975.00 67,385.02 2,589.98 103.84%

050 · Other Income

Returned Check Fees ($25) -12.00 25.00 -37.00 -48.0%

051 · Address Change ($10) 440.00 250.00 190.00 176.0%

053 · Electronic/Replacemt Stamp $25 64.98 39.98 25.00 162.53%

054 · Enforcement Revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

050 · Other Income - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total 050 · Other Income 492.98 314.98 178.00 156.51%

Total Income 74,021.72 71,500.00 2,521.72 103.53%

Gross Profit 74,021.72 71,500.00 2,521.72 103.53%

Expense

060 · Bank Charges 22.80 250.00 -227.20 9.12%

070 · Board Expenses

071 · Board Member Mtg Fee ($80) 1,200.00 1,600.00 -400.00 75.0%

072 · Meals - Board Meetings 313.82 1,500.00 -1,186.18 20.92%

 Page 1 of 3Meeting Packet Page 27



 12:05 PM

 02/01/15

 Cash Basis

 Nevada State Board of Landscape Architecture

 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 July 2014 through June 2015

Jul '14 - Jun 15 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

073 · Travel - Board Meetings 1,685.32 2,000.00 -314.68 84.27%

070 · Board Expenses - Other 282.26 2,000.00 -1,717.74 14.11%

Total 070 · Board Expenses 3,481.40 7,100.00 -3,618.60 49.03%

080 · CLARB Affiliation Dues 5,485.00 5,485.00 0.00 100.0%

090 · CLARB Conference Expenses

091 · Bd Member Conf Per Diem $80 1,040.00 1,280.00 -240.00 81.25%

092 · CLARB Representative Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

093 · Conference Registration 3,325.00 3,400.00 -75.00 97.79%

094 · Travel - CLARB 3,201.80 3,300.00 -98.20 97.02%

Total 090 · CLARB Conference Expenses 7,566.80 7,980.00 -413.20 94.82%

100 · Education & Training 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

120 · NCIRC

121 · Board Member NCIRC Mtg Fee $80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

122 · Miscellaneous - NCIRC 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

123 · Travel - NCIRC 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

120 · NCIRC - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total 120 · NCIRC 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

130 · Office Expenses

131 · Cellular Telephone 486.56 1,150.00 -663.44 42.31%

132 · DoIT Email & Web 948.52 1,200.00 -251.48 79.04%

133 · Miscellaneous Office Expense 2.90 500.00 -497.10 0.58%

134 · NSBLA Stamp 222.86 340.00 -117.14 65.55%

135 · Office Eqmt, Software & Maint 374.93 1,000.00 -625.07 37.49%

136 · Office Rent 3,600.00 3,600.00 0.00 100.0%

137 · Office Supplies 127.93 777.00 -649.07 16.47%

138 · Post Office Box Rent 0.00 128.00 -128.00 0.0%

139 · Postage & Delivery 52.22 300.00 -247.78 17.41%

140 · Printing & Reproduction 0.00 200.00 -200.00 0.0%

141 · Telephone & Fax Line 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total 130 · Office Expenses 5,815.92 9,195.00 -3,379.08 63.25%

150 · Payroll Expenses

151 · Enforcement Officer 75.00 100.00 -25.00 75.0%

152 · Executive Director 18,405.84 30,440.00 -12,034.16 60.47%

153 · Executive Director - Bonus 1,200.00 1,200.00 0.00 100.0%

154 · Mileage 269.70 400.00 -130.30 67.43%

155 · Nevada Business Tax 0.00 150.00 -150.00 0.0%

156 · Payroll Penalties & Interest 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

157 · Payroll Taxes 2,367.97 3,000.00 -632.03 78.93%

150 · Payroll Expenses - Other 2.90

Total 150 · Payroll Expenses 22,321.41 35,290.00 -12,968.59 63.25%

 Page 2 of 3Meeting Packet Page 28



 12:05 PM

 02/01/15

 Cash Basis

 Nevada State Board of Landscape Architecture

 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 July 2014 through June 2015

Jul '14 - Jun 15 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

160 · Professional Fees

161 · Accountant 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

162 · Bookkeeping 950.00 2,000.00 -1,050.00 47.5%

163 · Deputy Attorney General 151.82 1,500.00 -1,348.18 10.12%

164 · Legislative Bill Tracker 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

165 · Legislative Counsel Bureau 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

166 · 2015 Legislative Session 423.21 1,400.00 -976.79 30.23%

167 · Risk Management 601.90 1,000.00 -398.10 60.19%

168 · Temporary Office Help 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total 160 · Professional Fees 2,126.93 5,900.00 -3,773.07 36.05%

170 · Registration Renewal Expenses

171 · Mailing Renewal Forms 0.00 300.00 -300.00 0.0%

Total 170 · Registration Renewal Expenses 0.00 300.00 -300.00 0.0%

Total Expense 46,820.26 71,500.00 -24,679.74 65.48%

Net Income 27,201.46 0.00 27,201.46 100.0%

 Page 3 of 3Meeting Packet Page 29


	Meeting Agenda 2-7-2015
	AGENDA
	NEVADA STATE BOARD OF LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

	PUBLIC NOTICE OF MEETING
	MEETING AGENDA Pages 1-2

	Brian Sandoval
	BOARD MEMBERS

	11-7-2014 Meeting Minutes Draft
	January 2015 Legislative Report
	For February 7, 2015 Board Meeting Dale Meeting With Engineers
	LA EDUCATION Programs in Nevada
	EDUCATION
	JOBS

	Risk Management Coverage for Field Investigation Officers
	OSLAB Review_Winter2015 (1) 1
	Application For Professional Registration 1-2015
	Section 1 Identifying information
	Section 2 Landscape Architect Registration
	Section 3 Active Engagement in Full-time Practice
	Section 4 Professional References
	Section 5 Education
	AFFIDAVIT

	renewal_application_FY16
	Executive Director Report 2-7-2015
	NEVADA STATE BOARD OF LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
	EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT
	February 7, 2015

	Balance Sheet 2-1-2015
	Sheet1

	Profit and Loss Report 2-1-2015



